	Item #
	Page #
	Section #,

Figure # or

Table Name/#
	Paragraph #, Sentence or Bullet #
	Question
	State Response

	1
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Are you able to provide an estimate of the contract’s value?


	No.  

	2 
	13
	3.2, Understanding and Approach 
	 
	Given the amount of information requested in the RFP, would the State consider expanding the page limit for the Understanding and Approach narrative section to 25 pages? 
	The state is willing to expand the page limit to 15 pages.  

	3
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Can the Offeror use a subcontractor’s firm’s projects to complete the Corporate Experience Summary Form in order to provide three projects completed in the last three years and or three projects that are currently in progress?


	No

	4
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	In the event that DHCS were to conduct a separate procurement for MEDS Modernization as part of the CalHEERS implementation, would the PM Vendor be precluded from bidding on that procurement?
	Conflict questions are fact specific and without knowing the circumstances the state is unable to respond at this time.

	5
	Page 3
	Section 1.2
	Scope of this Solicitation, states:

“Please note that bidders on this solicitation may not also bid on the CalHEERS Development and Operations solicitation. The purpose of this solicitation is for a firm to manage and support the successful performance of the CalHEERS Development and Operations vendor, and as a result there would be a  conflict of interest having the same vendor operate in both roles.”  
	Please clarify whether the CalHEERS Development and Operations solicitation vendor is the same as the ‘DDI System Integrator (SI)’.


	The CalHEERS Development and Operations solicitation vendor is the same as the DDI System Integrator (SI). The restriction refers to respondents to HBEX4 and their subcontractors.
As stated in the RFP Section 1.2:  Please note that bidders on this solicitation may not also bid on the CalHEERS Development and Operations solicitation. The purpose of this solicitation is for a firm to manage and support the successful performance of the CalHEERS Development and Operations vendor, and as a result there would be a conflict of interest having the same vendor operate in both roles.  



	6
	Page 6
	Section 2.1 
	Introduction: Project Objectives, states:

“The Consultant shall provide a full-time, on-site team of project management, business analyst, and technical architecture consultants to assist

in the management and oversight of the

CalHEERS DDI. The Consultant team shall function as an integral component of the State's CalHEERS project management team, supporting the State in executing its responsibilities for managing the CalHEERS DDI.”
	Are all eighteen staff members assigned to this project required to work full time, onsite in CA for the duration of this project?


	Each staff member will work according to the hours in Schedule A and the staffing plan.

In general, positions listed in lines 1 through 15 of Schedule A are expected to be full-time, on-site positions. The line 16 positions are designated as an "as-needed" pool of technical staff with an hours budget equivalent of three FTEs whose utilization is described in Section 2.5 of the RFP. The State expects to be reasonable in its management of the deployment of the consultants, recognizing that the consultants are expected to become an integral part of the State project management team.



	7
	Page 6
	Section 2.1 
	Introduction: Project Objectives, states:

“The Consultant shall provide a full-time, on-site team of project management, business analyst, and technical architecture consultants to assist

in the management and oversight of the

CalHEERS DDI. The Consultant team shall function as an integral component of the State's CalHEERS project management team, supporting the State in executing its responsibilities for managing the CalHEERS DDI.”
	For the on-site work, will the State supply the consulting staff with office space and internet connectivity?


	Yes.

	8
	Page 6
	Section 2.1 
	 Introduction: Project Objectives, states:

“The Consultant shall provide a full-time, on-site team of project management, business analyst, and technical architecture consultants to assist

in the management and oversight of the

CalHEERS DDI. The Consultant team shall function as an integral component of the State's CalHEERS project management team, supporting the State in executing its responsibilities for managing the CalHEERS DDI.”
	All on-site work for this project will take place in Sacramento, CA correct?


	Yes.

	9
	Page 13
	Section 3.2- Overview of Volume 1-Response to Requirements, Staff Qualifications-References 
	“Offerors must complete the Staff Reference Form found in Attachment 2. Two reference forms must be provided for each proposed team member. Each reference must be linked to a project on the Staff Experience Summary Form.

References must be individuals who managed or supervised the proposed team member and reviewed their work. References are required to complete Section B, sign and date the form. Any
forms not signed and dated may be deemed non-responsive.”
	Are electronic signatures acceptable for the references in this section?
	No


	10
	Page 47
	
	CalHEERS Project Office
	Will state workers interfacing with the PM team listed in on the CalHEERS Project Office be available during the review and assessment process?


	Every effort will be made to make state workers available.  

	11
	Page 47
	
	CalHEERS Project Office
	Does CA currently have a Project Management Office established to work on this planning and implementation project?
	The CalHEERS Project Office (RFP Attachment 4) is in the process of being staffed.  This RFP is part of that process.

	12
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Will the contractor have access to planning and implementation documents and data previously conducted under other procurements for the HBE?
	Yes



	13
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Will preference to responses be given to those who are currently engaged with CalHEERS on implementation or other HBE activities?
	No.  The vendors will be evaluated based on the evaluation criteria set forth in the RFP.

	14
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Is there an expectation that the prime vendor will be, or will prefer to be, a California based entity?  
	No

	15
	
	Section 1.2
	“…bidders on this solicitation may not bid on the CalHEERS Development and Operations solicitation.” 
	 Understandably, there is a conflict of interest if subcontractor on the winning development team also wins the project management and technical support proposal.  However, timing on both proposals overlap, creating potential downstream conflicts.  Can a development subcontractor submit proposals for both the project management and technical support elements, with the understanding that it may have to rescind its proposal should you select the prime vendor’s submission for which they are party?  We believe that allowing this would increase competition and provide the state with the best, most responsive proposals, since many qualified firms have secured subcontracting roles with System Integration firms, yet the proposal periods overlap.


	See response to question #5.

	16
	12
	3.2
	Projects in Progress or Completed within the Last Three Years
	To allow Vendors to provide its three most relevant project experiences and for consistency with CalHEERS Solicitation HBEX4, we request the State either remove the constraint associated with projects completed only within the last three years, or to extend to projects completed within the last ten years.
	The state is unable to accommodate this request.

	17
	13
	3.2
	Staff Qualifications – Staff Experience Summary Form
	To allow Vendors to provide the most applicable staff experience, to demonstrate the depth and breadth of understanding and skills required for this project, and for consistency with CalHEERS Solicitation HBEX4, we request the State either remove the constraint associated with projects completed within the last five years, or extend.  
	The state is unable to accommodate this request.

	18
	22
	4.3.6
	Offeror’s Total Score
	This section indicates that the Exchange will enter in to contract negotiations with the successful Offeror.  May Offerors include with their responses exceptions to terms and conditions in the RFP that they would like to negotiate if selected as the successful Offeror?   Specifically, we would like to reserve the opportunity to negotiate the intellectual property rights provision in Exhibit E and the addition of a provision that limits the Contractor’s liability.
	The bidders may submit proposed changes to the terms and conditions.  All proposed changes are subject to negotiation with the successful bidder.



	19
	43
	Attachment 3-Volume II
	Cost Bid Form
	Given the large, complex nature of the CalHEERS project and the aggressive schedule, we believe there will be tasks and/or situations that warrant specific expertise at a point in time.  We recognize the State has defined a pool of As-Needed Technical Specialists that, for consistent cost evaluation purposes, are reflected on a full-time basis.  Would the State consider incorporating additional as-needed resources with a single average hourly rate (but with no specific hours attached)?
	No.

	20
	n/a
	n/a
	General
	To ensure all potential bidders have access to the same competitive information, will the State share the CalHEERS Implementation Advanced Planning Document and/or the budget for the PM/Technical Support Services contract?
	The CalHEERS Implementation Advance Planning Document is in development and cannot be shared at this time.  Please note that the budget for the PM/Technical Support Services has not and will not be available to potential bidders. 



	21
	n/a
	n/a
	General
	Does the State anticipate that travel will be expected of the Project Management and/or Technical Support staff during the implementation period? If so, will the State reimburse those costs at State rates as travel is needed?
	The state does not anticipate any travel.  If the state does require travel an expense claim can be filed following state policy and travel costs will be reimbursed accordingly.

	22
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	If a Consultant staff change becomes necessary during performance of the contract, what is the process to implement that type of change?
	Contractor initiated staff changes should be for good cause, provide adequate notice to the State, timely replacement and permit State approval of replacement staff.

	23
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	What contractual obligations, if any, will the SI contractor be subject to in providing the Consultant access to its team members and SI project information in a timely manner?
	Please refer to www.hbex.ca.gov for any information related to the HBEX4 RFP. The Consultant will not be held accountable for SI failure to perform.

	24
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	If the Consultant is employing subcontractors to perform a material portion of the work, can subcontractor project experience be included as part of the qualifying experience, in the Corporate Experience Summary Form?
	See response to Question #3.

	25
	
	Section 2.5
	Technical Architecture Review Responsibilities 

“The Consultant shall provide qualified technical specialists at appropriate points in SDLC to review and evaluate SI plans…..”
	Is the CalHEERS Evaluation Team expecting the submittal of individual staff resume’s and required references encompassing each of the specified subject matter areas identified in Section 2.5 Technical Architecture Review Responsibilities? 


	The evaluation process does not contemplate a one-to-one match with resume skills and the referenced subject matter areas. The evaluation of Corporate Qualifications and of Staff Experience and Credentials and references does allow for an assessment of the bidder’s capabilities to support these areas.

	26
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Please clarify the deliverable review/acceptance procedure anticipated for this project.
	This is effectively a time and materials contract.  Consultant work products will be subject to State approval and must be satisfactorily completed within appropriate time and budget constraints. 

	27
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Is the target date for the system integrator to be announced still March 8th, as indicated in the request for proposal?
	Please refer to www.hbex.ca.gov for any information related to the HBEX4 RFP.

	28
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Please provide the name of vendors that submitted bids for the system integrator project. 
	Please see response to Question #27.

	29
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Please provide the name of all vendors that submitted a letter of intent for this Project Management and Technical Support work. 
	This information is not available at this time for public disclosure. 

	30
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Does the state have preferred project management software for projects of this type?  If so, will the consultant be expected to use that software?
	There is no preferred software at this time.  The Consultant may have input into the software selection, but the State will make the final decision.

	31
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	 To the extent that we use sub-contractors on our team how would you like us to document that arrangement in the proposal? 

	Include each individual’s status in that individual’s resume.

	32
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Is it acceptable to use an internal supervisor reference for team members below the team leader level? 


	The intent of the RFP is for the references to come from clients or former employers. References from a proposed staff member’s current employer are not acceptable.

	33
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Has a budget for this project been established?  If so, what is the maximum amount and what is the funding source (e.g., federal or state funding)?  


	Please see response to Question #1.

	34
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	What is the scope of the federal Gate Reviews?  Please provide details with regard to their type, frequency, and the materials/deliverables that may need to be prepared for these gates. 


	For further information on this topic, we recommend that you review the various pertinent publications from the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, such as Exchange Reference Architecture: Foundation Guidance.

	35
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	What is the scope and associated consultant responsibilities for the control agency and Board documents?  For example, one of the documents listed in the RFP is a Feasibility Study Report. What type of feasibility studies are in scope? 


	The state will communicate what is required as the need arises.

	36
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Please describe the level of effort you anticipate for the IFPUG certified resources.


	It is the responsibility of the vendor to complete Schedule B by entering a firm fixed price for each of the five Function Point Counts.

	37
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	How should subject matter expert resources be represented in the cost worksheet?  Subject matter expert resources will be used to enhance the quality of services provided by the core team, but there does not seem to be a place for those resources needs to be documented in the proposal. 


	Attachment 3 reflects all consultant resources desired by the state.  Please complete Attachment 3.

	38
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Please confirm that the award of CA HBEX5 does not represent a conflict in proposing on this project. 


	The state does not see any obvious conflicts if the same entity performs both as they seem unrelated but this question should be posed to the proposing firm’s counsel.  

	39
	3, 44
	1.3 and Attachment 3
	1.3 Period of Performance and Attachment 3 Cost Bid Form
	Section 1.3 indicates that the period of performance for the contract is 24 months with an option to extend for an additional 24 months.  However the base period of the contract in the cost bid form includes an additional 3 months for FY 11-12. 

Can the base period of the contract please be clarified?


	The base period is 27 months. 

	40
	n/a
	n/a
	
	Given the minimum requirements as stated for proposed staff, the State may receive a wide range of responses, i.e. from experienced consulting firms to staffing agencies, resulting in a wide range of proposed costs.  

Because cost is worth 40% of the evaluation, and so that vendors can better understand and meet the Exchange’s expectations, please provide the estimated budget for this contract, for both the base period as well as optional project duration. 
	Please see response to Question #1.

	41
	Page 10 

Page 47 

Page 6
	2.5

Organization Chart 

2.1 Introduction: Project Objectives 
	The first paragraph on page 10 (2.5 Technical Architecture Review Responsibilities) states “The Consultant shall designate a full-time, on-site Lead Technical Analyst who will work with the State to arrange the deployment of appropriate technical specialists and appropriate points in the SDLC.”

The organization chart specifies 4 FTEs.

The first paragraph states “The Consultant shall provide a full-time, on-site team, etc”.
	Please confirm that the Exchange is seeking only 4 technical resumes.
	As stated in the RFP Section 3.2, Staff Qualifications – Resumes:  For the Technical Specialists, a total of four resumes must be provided, with one designated as Lead, and the other representing a range of specialties designed to support the requirements set forth in Section 2.5.
Please also see the response to Question 25.



	42
	Page 3
	1.2 Scope of This Solicitation
	Paragraph 4 states bidders to the CalHEERS Development and Operations solicitation may not bid due to a conflict of interest. 


	Does this include all bidders, including subs? 

In addition, the procurement assistance vendors who developed the CalHEERS Development and Operations solicitation also appear to have a conflict of interest. Are they precluded from bidding on this contract?
	Please refer to response in Question #5.  

No



	43
	Page 11, Page 43
	2.5 Technical Architecture Review Responsibilities

Attachment 3 – Volume II Cost Bid Form
	The last paragraph states that the State reserves the right to request any, all, or none of the specific counts.  Counts shall be performed by International Function Point Users Group (IFPUG) Certified Function Point Specialists.

This paragraph instructs bidders to complete Schedule B by entering a firm fixed price for each of the five Function Point Counts, which may be requested at the sole option of the State
	Please confirm that this cost will not be considered in the cost evaluation.


	As stated in the RFP Section 4.3.5, the Cost Evaluation will be based upon the total Schedule A cost.

	44
	Page 25
	Exhibit B, State Budget Contingency Clause
	Item 2
	If the State cancels the Agreement, will the Contractor be paid for any services already performed?
	If the State cancels the Agreement and the Contractor has performed the services satisfactorily and according to the Agreement until the cancellation, the Contractor will be paid the contractual value for services subject to the State’s acceptance and the payment provisions.



	45
	Page 31
	Exhibit D (Standard Agreement), B. Termination without Cause
	This Agreement may be terminated without cause by the State upon 30 days written notice to the contractor.


	Given the size of this project, this clause imposes excessive financial risk on the vendor.  We request that the State consider changing this clause to either 1) Termination with Cause based upon dispute and/or escalation procedures, or 2) Termination without Cause by the State upon 90 days written notice. 
	The state is unable to accommodate this request.

	46
	Page 13
	3.2 Staff Qualifications – Staff Experience Summary Form
	Paragraph 1
	Staff experience is limited to only those projects completed within the last five years, or currently in progress.  

Because the large, statewide eligibility implementations across the country were completed more than 5 years ago, would the State change the requirement for the Staff Experience?
	See response to Question #17.

	47
	
	Section 1.2-Scope of This Solicitation 
	Bidders on this solicitation may not also bid on the CalHEERS Development and Operations solicitation. 
	Can a subcontractor who was bid as part of a proposal for the CalHEERS Development and Operations solicitation be a subcontractor for this solicitation?


	See response to Question #5.

	48
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Are firms that have been providing services for Health Benefit Exchange precluded from bidding, especially if their work contributed to the preparation of the CalHEERS Development and Operations RFP?


	No

	49
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Can additional content not specified in the RFP, such as a cover letter or executive summary, be included in the RFP response?


	No

	50
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Are firms proposed for less than 10% of the work by the CalHEERS Development and Operations vendor conflicted from responding to this procurement?


	See response to Question #5.

	51
	Page 12
	Section 3.2
	
	In Section 3.2, page 12 states that you are seeking 18 consultants. It also includes instructions for resumes. Are resumes expected for all 18 consultants or for key positions only?

 


	Resumes are expected for all 18 consultants and not just key positions.

	52
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	The RFP states that the Master Copy of the submitted proposal must include original signatures. Does this include the staff reference forms, or may those be faxed and / or scanned?
	The staff reference forms may be faxed or scanned.

	53
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	 In the event that a candidate's manager or supervisor is not available within the timeframe required to submit the proposal, may other references be used?


	See response to Question #32.

	54
	Page 33
	Exhibit D, Subsection F.
	A-133 Audit is part of the “Special Terms and Conditions”
	The Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 is solely used for non-profit organizations. We are a for-profit organization.  However, to satisfy the Exchange’s obligations regarding federal funding, we offer substitute language that relies on 45 CFR 74.26 which allows organizations to use either A-133 or a “financial-related audit of all HHS awards in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.”  For prior engagements, we have proposed the following change, which would wholly replace or be an addition to Section F. A-133 Audit: with the Organization Audits text as written below.

“OMB Circular A-133 does not apply to for-profit sub-recipients (subpart 210(e)) or to for-profit entities that operate as a service vendor (subpart 210(f)).  The contractor under this contract would be acting as a for-profit service vendor and as a result would not be subject to an OMB Circular A-133 audit requirement. The contractor will be responsible to have an annual financial statement audit performed in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as well as an audit in conformance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS), commonly referred to as a "Yellow Book" audit.  The "Yellow Book" audit includes additional tests over the contractors internal controls related to xxx certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, along with the handling of receipts, expenditures and payroll related to government contracts.”

	For-profit corporations may be sub-recipients subject to OMB Circular A-133 audit requirements under certain circumstances. The parties will need to determine if receiving the award for this contract makes the contractor a sub-recipient.



	55
	Page 12
	Section 3.2
	
	The offerer is required to provide a number of references for recent and active projects on the Corporate Experience Summary Form.  If the offerer includes subcontractors in its bid, can projects performed by the subcontractor be included on the form?


	See response to Question #3.

	56
	Page 44
	Attachment 3, Schedule A
	Line 16 requests an “As-Needed Technical Specialist Pool (3FTE).”
	In order to provide the breadth and depth of experience requested by the RFP on Page 10, Section 2.5, can the offeror propose more than 3 qualified technical specialists in the pool (that do not exceed 3 FTEs)?  

 
	Please provide the exact number of resumes requested in the RFP.

Please see also the response to Question 25.

	57
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	If the number of proposed technical specialists (excluding the lead) is limited to 3, is the resume of a proposed Certified Function Point Specialist counted as one of the 3 resumes, or is this position to be submitted separate and apart from the pool?


	To clarify, in the case of the technical specialists, it is the number of resumes submitted that is subject to a limit, not the number of staff that may ultimately be used. The resumes are intended to be representative of the breadth of the bidder’s staff experience. Please see also the response to Question 25.

In answer to your question, there are no resumes required or expected for Certified Function Point Specialist(s).

	58
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Can the projects of the consultants proposed by the Offeror, whether they are a employee of the Offeror or a subcontractor to the Offeror, be used to complete the Corporate Experience Summary Form, in order to provide three projects completed in the last three years and or three projects that are currently in progress?


	No

	59
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Will the State consider moving the due date for submission of the final responses one week later, to March 26, 2012, in order to allow Offerors to provide the best team possible of experienced consultants to the State?


	No.

	60
	Page 14
	General Instructions, #1
	“For the purposes of this paragraph, “firm” includes a parent corporation of a firm and any other subsidiary of that parent corporation. If a firm or individual submits more than one response, the State will reject all responses submitted by that firm or individual. The instructions noted in this section states a firm”
	Is this stating that a firm cannot submit multiple offers as the prime contractor?


	Yes

	61
	Page 14
	General Instructions, #1
	“A firm or individual proposing to act as a prime contractor may be named as a subcontractor in another offeror’s response. Similarly, more than one offeror may use the same subcontractors and/or independent consultants.”
	Please confirm if a firm and/or individual can submit multiple offers if they are shown as a prime on one offer and subcontractor on another.  
Also, can a firm be a subcontractor on multiple offers?


	Yes

Yes

	62
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Will the SI be responsible for the organizational change management aspects of the project, such as changes to internal policies and procedures, change readiness planning and assessments, monitoring of change adoption rate? If so, will the Consultant for this RFO be responsible for reviews and assessments of these deliverables?


	As part of the State project management team, Consultant staff will be responsible for tasks as assigned by the State. The Project Management Support organization, illustrated in RFP Attachment 4, does encompass change management.

	63
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	The RFO specifies that the Consultant Business Analysts will "actively participate in each phase of the DDI process," but does not specifically list requirements specifications as a deliverable. Is it expected that the Consultant Business Analysts will be writing requirements specification documents?
	This will be effectively a time and materials contract and not focused primarily on Consultant deliverables.  As part of the State project management team, Consultant staff will be responsible for tasks as assigned by the State. The System Development Support organization, illustrated in RFP Attachment 4, does encompass the requirements phase.

	64
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Will the Consultant be responsible to oversee the project Change Management process, or act only as reviewer/recommender?
	See response to Question #62.

	65
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a
	Will the contract resulting from the RFP be governed under the State’s Standard Terms and Conditions (GSPD-401-IT) in combination with the Special Terms and Conditions and Additional Provisions attached to the RFP?  If not, what additional contract terms will be utilized?


	The terms and conditions are completely contained in Attachment 1 of the RFP or Section 4 of the 213.  


